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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries
in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean

that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM. The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed

issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the

whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of TeleEye Holdings Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange for the
purpose of giving information with regard to TeleEye Holdings Limited. The directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all
opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that

are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE#H &

The Group has achieved a significant growth in business amidst
a highly competitive market in the past year. As a result of our
expanded product portfolio and effective marketing efforts, TeleEye
brand is well received in the video surveillance market worldwide.
Our focus on quality products and services is bringing in fruitful
results. On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to thank

our team for the quality work they performed during the year.

In the coming year, we are launching a full range of RX Video
Recording Transmitters that incorporates the revolutionary video
compression technology SMAC-M we developed in the past two
years. In comparison with MPEG-4, the SMAC-M technology can
record longer time and at the same time outputs multiple video
streams for optimal performance in various communication channels.
In short, RX is superior in both video recording and remote
surveillance performances. The new product series will give a strong

push to our growing business.

Besides strong R&D efforts, we will continue to improve our
quality management system, strengthen our sales and support
network, tighten our cost control and enhance our staff development
in the coming year. We believe our effort will bring in long term

profitability for the Group.

Last but not least, I would like to express our sincere thank to
our investors, bankers and business partners for their support to

the Group.

Dr. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 14 September 2006

ANNUAL REPORT

TeleEye Holdings Limited
2006 % E e

F B R B & R 2 8

TE 25 —4F - A SR B7E 358 F  BE S  Th 3 h
PR RIEZER R - AL BB AOERAS
S A WOEFT TG TeleEye i I 7E 3R BRI AR
B 6 T 3 B 52 O o A A IR R ) AR P R R
JE i B s o AR A MR AR o AN R EHE
TR B R TE AR A BE A B T AR o

TEACAE > A B I 4 Hh — 8 R RO Bk 15 1
ARG > oAU A AR T A s T AR BH B 09
T 2 &R R A BT T SMAC-M] o B
MPEG-4 L #8 > SMAC-M$ i fE 8% B2 L R[] > [H]
Wit 22 EE AR ER T o E 22 R R B I A
BRI - BUTM 5 2 > RXFE SRR R BE B 5 R By
T A BB o AE RZOBT EE S R SIS T > A
WMEPWEREGHEIE—F -

B 50 S B T 3% AR A o AR 2 1 I A AR AF A A
oA H R AR AT R H B R B SR A AR
Wi B AR P R o Sl 4R TH I B TER R o FRAMAH
5o BAMI 55 358 G J AR AR T A AR IR A i A o

AR > AN — B FEAREENERES - R
1B 3E W50 FE B & 0 i o

IR A1 i il
T R AT A

T DELNFEINLA A



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 E &t am ko i

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a total turnover of approximately
HK$37,356,000 for the year ended 30 June 2006, representing an
increase of approximately 36% as compared to the turnover of
approximately HK$27,492,000 for the year ended 30 June 2005. In
comparison with the previous quarter ended 31 March 2006, turnover
for this quarter ended 30 June 2006 increase by approximately 13%
or approximately HK$1,171,000. The Group recorded a loss
attributable to the equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$273,000 for the year ended 30 June 2006, as compared to the
loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$3,284,000 for last year.

Loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2006 was HK$0.15
cent, compared to loss per share of HK$1.82 cent for the year ended
30 June 2005.

The encouraging growth in turnover for the year ended 30 June
2006 was attributable to the Group’s success in global expansion
and advanced product development strategies. Overall operating costs
for the year ended 30 June 2006 were approximately HK$18,874,000,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$16,000 as compared
to HK$18,890,000 for the year ended 30 June 2005. Notwithstanding
the rise in turnover, overall operating costs kept at approximately
the same level as last year. This was due to the implementation of
effective cost control measures and efficient allocation of resources

applied among the Group.

During the year, the Group had capitalized operating costs of
approximately HK$741,000 (2005: HK$1,097,000) in respect of
development of advanced CCTV products.

Consistent with the Group’s policy, there was no share of loss of
an associate, namely CAMERIO Japan Inc., as the Group’s
accumulated share of loss had already exceeded its carrying amount
of investment in CAMERIO Japan Inc. For the year ended 30 June
2006, turnover generated from CAMERIO Japan Inc. was decreasing.
It also incurred a modest loss when compared with a modest profit
in last year. In view of uncertain market condition in Japan, the
Board recognized a further provision of approximately HK$67,000
for the loan made to this associate. After the provision, the carrying
value of the loan made to this associate was approximately

HK$25,000.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B2 E & am ko

COMMENTS ON SEGMENT INFORMATION
Europe

Europe was still the largest market of the Group, whose turnover
for the year ended 30 June 2006 amounted to approximately
HK$10,905,000 (2005: HK$8,408,000) or 29.2% (2005: 30.6%) of
the Group’s turnover. TeleEye Europe Limited (a subsidiary in the
UK) operates as a direct selling office commencing from April 2004.
It contributed significant effort in the provision of technical and
marketing support in the region. Segment profits increased to
approximately HK$953,000 (2005: HK$594,000). It was due to the
increase in turnover and implementation of stringent cost control

measures.

Hong Kong

Hong Kong was the second largest market of the Group. Turnover
for the year ended 30 June 2006 amounted to approximately
HK$5,935,000 (2005: HK$6,878,000) or 16% (2005: 25%) of the
Group’s turnover. Segment profits reduced to approximately
HK$2,246,000 (2005: HK$2,926,000). It was due to the decrease in

turnover and reduction in gross profit margin of products.

Other Asia Countries

Turnover for other Asia countries for the year ended 30 June
2006 amounted to approximately HK$4,911,000 (2005: 4,214,000)
or 13.1% (2005: 15.3%) of the Group’s turnover. Segment profits
increased by 77% to approximately HK$960,000 (2005:
HK$541,000). Because of increasing marketing efforts in these
markets, both turnover and segment results for the year ended 30

June 2006 increased as compared with last year.

Middle East

As a result of the Group’s global marketing efforts, turnover
generated for the year ended 30 June 2006 from Middle East
amounted to approximately HK$4,755,000 (2005: HK$2,028,000)
or 12.7% (2005: 7.4%) of the Group’s turnover. Segment profits
increase by 120% to approximately HK$1,727,000 (2005:
HK$785,000).

Singapore

Due to increase in market demand, turnover for Singapore for
the year ended 30 June 2006 amounted to approximately
HK$4,338,000 (2005: HK$2,874,000) or 11.6% (2005: 10.5%) of
the Group’s turnover. Segment profits increase by 103% to
approximately HK$136,000 (2005: HK$67,000).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 E &t am ko i

Others

Other geographical segments included the Americas, Africa and
Australia. Turnover for the year ended 30 June 2006 amounted to
approximately HK$6,512,000 (2005: HK$3,090,000) or 17.4% (2005:
11.2%) of the Group’s total turnover. The growth in turnover can
be attributable to the Group’s aggressive sales and marketing efforts
and increased competitiveness of new products launched last year.
Segment profits increase to approximately HK$1,558,000 (2005:
HK$726,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the research and
development and sales and marketing of audio and video monitoring
systems. The Group achieved growth under a highly competitive
market environment. Keen competitions mainly come from digital
video recorder and network camera manufacturers, and price war in
various market reduced the Group’s gross profit margin. In view of
this, the Group has introduced new products, focused on deeper
penetration of existing market and expanded its distribution
networks. During the year, the Group continued to conduct
exhibitions and seminars in various countries with a view to enhance

the TeleEye brand image worldwide.

During the year, the Group had appointed TeleEye Hrvatska and
TeleEye Philippines Inc, under a licensing and distributor agreement,
as the distributor in Croatia and Philippines respectively. Pursuant
to the agreement, TeleEye Hrvatska and TeleEye Philippines Inc
can sell and distribute TeleEye products within the territory using
“TeleEye” trademark. Under this arrangement, the Group can further
expand the sales revenue and enhance the awareness of TeleEye

brand name in the regions.

The Group launched a series of new products to meet customers’
demands and further penetrate into the global market. TeleEye 3G
Mobile Video Surveillance Solution (“TeleEye 3G”) was launched
in October 2005. TeleEye 3G is a one-plug module of mobile camera
providing remote viewing over 3G mobile network. Apart from the
3G network in Hong Kong, the TeleEye 3G is also compatible with
UMTS in other countries. TeleEye 3G had won the Gold Award in
the 3G Application Category in the First Hong Kong Wireless
Technology Excellence Awards co-organized by the Hong Kong
Wireless Technology Industry Association and the Hong Kong

Productivity Council.
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During the year, the Group launched TeleEye RX360 Series
Digital Video Recording Transmitters (TeleEye RX360). TeleEye
RX360 consists of a comprehensive product range of 4-channel
transmitter (TeleEye RX364), 8-channel transmitter (TeleEye
RX368) and 16-channel transmitter (TeleEye RX3616). TeleEye
RX360 is a range of high performance video recording transmitters
with built-in CD-writer and removable hard drive for standalone
and remote operations. It is designed to operate on diverse network
environment and fully utilize the existing bandwidth with optimal
performance. Incorporated with the Group’s latest proprietary
compression technology called Multi-rate Scalable Motion Adaptive
Video Coder (SMAC-M), TeleEye RX360 delivers truly “no
compromise” on both efficient video transmission and excellent DVD
quality recording performance. TeleEye RX360 is also designed to
fully comply with the British Standard BS 8418:2003, providing
professional remote monitoring and visual alarm verification solution
to central monitoring stations. Turnover from TeleEye RX360

accounted for approximately 10% of the Group’s turnover.

TeleEye RX364 (formerly named as RX304), one of the member
of TeleEye RX360, had won the Gold Award in the 2005 Hong
Kong Electronic Industries Association (HKEIA) Award for
Outstanding Innovation and Technology Products in the security
category during the Hong Kong Electronics Fair 2005, the largest

electronic exhibitions in Asia and the second largest in the world.

TeleEye RN Series Digital Video Recorder (“TeleEye RN”) were
introduced during the year. TeleEye RN is a range of feature-rich
and easy-to-use 4-, 8- and 16-channel digital video recorders. It is a
complete recording solution with CD writer for video extraction
purpose. Available with IR remote control, TeleEye RN provides
users with convenient front panel control without additional wires
or cabling. It provides reliable performance which is suitable for a
wide range of surveillance applications from retail outlets, factory,

shopping mall and property management installations.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Going forward, the Group will focus on its core strength of
developing and sourcing innovative and quality products, and will
explore into new markets in countries with good market potential
in order to broaden the source of revenue. Accumulated with more
than ten years of solid experience in the CCTV field, the Group is
agile enough to grasp the new market trends and business
opportunities emerged from the latest economic recovery. The
directors are cautiously optimistic of the future growth of the group
and believe that the group can continue to be a leading technological
advanced supplier in the global market of video management

applications.
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DIVIDENDS
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2006 (2005: Nil).

EMPLOYEES

As at 30 June 2006, the Group employed 34 (2005: 36) full time
employees in Hong Kong and 17 (2005: 17) full time employees in
the overseas offices. The Group’s staff costs, including directors’
emoluments, employees’ salaries and retirement benefits scheme
contribution amounted to approximately HK$12,601,000 (2005:
HK$12,405,000).

Employees’ remuneration is in accordance with individual’s
responsibility and performance and remains competitive with the
prevailing market rates. Other fringe benefits such as medical
insurance, retirement benefit scheme and discretionary bonus are
offered to all employees. Share options are granted at the directors’
discretion and under the terms and conditions of share options

schemes.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING RATIO

As at 30 June 2006, a non-interest bearing short-term advances
was outstanding to a minority shareholder. The loan was to finance
the operation of TeleEye (S) Pte Limited and was denominated in
Singapore dollars and repayable on demands. There was no drawing
and repayment to this loan during the year. During the year, the
Group continued to obtain a non-interest bearing loan from another
minority shareholder. The loan was denominated in British pounds
and was used to finance the operation of TeleEye Europe Limited.

There was no repayment to this loan as at 30 June 2006.

Other than the above, the Group mainly used its internal
resources to finance its operations during the year. The Group has
available banking facilities of HK$5 million from Hang Seng Bank
and none of them had been utilized as at 30 June 2006 (30 June
2005: Nil). Consequently, the Group’s gearing ratio, as a percentage
of bank and other borrowings and long-term debt over total assets,
as at 30 June 2006 was approximately 1% (30 June 2005: 1%).

The Group had bank balances, deposits and cash of approximately
HK$13,354,000 as at 30 June 2006 (30 June 2005: HK$16,339,000).
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Apart from the aforesaid non-interest bearing advances from
minority shareholders, the Group did not have any borrowings

during the year under review.

There was no change in the Company’s share capital during the
year ended 30 June 2006. The details of change of share options are

set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
The Group did not make any significant new investment during

the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES
The Group did not make any material acquisitions and disposals

of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 30 June 2006, the Group did not have any charge on its
assets (30 June 2005: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Other than those disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated
24 April 2001, the Group does not have any other plan for material

investments or capital assets for the coming year.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND RELATED HEDGES

During the year under review, the Group’s transactions were
substantially denominated in either Hong Kong, US dollars and
British Pounds. Since the Hong Kong dollars are pegged to the US
dollars, the Board considers that the potential foreign exchange
exposure of the Group is limited. During the year under review, the
Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes
(30 June 2005: Nil). The Group closely monitors its foreign currency
exposure from time to time and will engage appropriate hedging

activities should needs arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2006, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (30 June 2005: Nil).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chan Chok Ki, aged 51, is a founder, chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, responsible for the overall
corporate management and business development of the Group. He
also actively participates in the strategic research and development
of the Group. Dr. C.K. Chan is a research veteran in the digital
signal processing and image compression technology. He had taught
at the City University of Hong Kong (“City University”) since 1985
and was a professor of the Department of Electronic Engineering at
the City University before he officially became involved in the
management of the Group on a full-time basis in December 2000.
He is presently an Adjunct Professor of the Department of Electronic

Engineering at the City University.

Dr. C.K. Chan is presently the Chairman of the Industry and
Technology Committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce and the member of the HKTDC Electronics/Electrical
Appliances Industry Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council. He has received many awards which include
the EDN Asia Innovator in 1996 and IEEE Third Millennium Award

in 2000 for his outstanding achievement and contributions.

Dr. C.K. Chan obtained both his bachelor and master degrees of
science in electrical engineering from The University of California,
Los Angeles. He received his PhD degree in electronics from The

Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Dr. Ma Chi Kit, aged 38, is a founder and the Chief Marketing
Officer of the Group. He has extensive knowledge on digital signal
processing and telecommunications technologies. He is presently
responsible for formulation and implementation of marketing
strategies, product pricing and positioning, and strategic management

of channel distribution for the Group.

Dr. Ma obtained his bachelor’s degree with first class honours

and a PhD degree in electronic engineering from the City University.

Mr. Ho Ka Ho, aged 34, is a founder and the Engineering Director
of the Group. He is in charge of the engineering department of the
Group and is responsible for product design, quality control, research
and development of the Group. Mr. Ho has expertise in computer

architecture, software engineering and digital signal processing.

Mr. Ho obtained his bachelor of engineering degree in computer
engineering with first class honours and master of science degree in

electronic engineering from the City University.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, aged 48, is a founder and a research and
development consultant of the Group, responsible for spearheading
the research and development team on a part-time basis with
particular focus on product design and development. Dr. C.F. Chan
is a research veteran in the digital signal processing and speech

compression technology.

Dr. C.F. Chan is presently an associate professor of the
Department of Electronic Engineering at the City University. He is
also a director of Signal Communications Holdings Limited and
Signal Communications Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries

of the Company.

In 1998, he was named “EDN Asia Innovator” by the EDN Asia

Magazine for his contribution in speech compression technology.

He received all his bachelor, master and PhD degrees in electronic

engineering from The University of Essex, England.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Siu Wan Chi, aged 56, is an independent non-executive
Director who was appointed in September 2000. He is presently
Chair Professor of the Department of Electronic and Information
Engineering, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was the
Head of the same department and Dean of Engineering Faculty
between 1994 and 2002.

Prof. Siu has held numerous public offices in the academic field
including member of editorial board of renowned journals in the
U.S. and the PRC, general chair of world-class international
conferences, and chairman of academic/professional assessment

panels.

Prof. Siu obtained his master of philosophy degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong, and the PhD degree from Imperial
College of Science, Technology and Medicine, University of London,
UK.

ANNUAL REPORT
2006 F b

TeleEye Holdings Limited
F B B B2 R 8 B 2 7

T ES

BRAFEBE I L > BUAR485E > /A 4R B A A A e it
T K B BRI > DA v B BB A B T T % R R
BRAT - 5 Al ST 2 bl SBERT B BE R o BT = 5 B
5 AU 5% o B I o o R A R 4 L EIRWTIT A -

BRI L BRI T KB E T AR S R AT - 1
IS By AN A MR & E W A~ Fl Signal
Communications Holdings Limited 5 sl WF B} £ A
IRAarz#Ed o

J— JL L\ AE B S EDN AR Ik 5% %38 A TEDN R
PHEEWI K | > R HESE & B4 il 2 BE ek -

A 9 B Essex KBS E 7 LREL - - it
e XA

BSr IR BT R

W AR - BAFsoR » R_FRRAFEILH %
ZAE WS IERATE S o BUREL B I TR
BT MOCE G TR B G R BT o AE — LU AR &
TERRTAMME I ET RERTREERRE
1T B TR BB B o

R R B G EZ H AR > B RE K
Sl EZCE R JURIE7/ P T] E R0 S
SIS PR DY E S . S iR
JiE o

T LA 7 s o SO B T SRR - B A > S
T A 3 (B il O B B B 2 1 B A



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EE ks & B HE A

—_

RS

[0

\|

Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki, JP, aged 61, is an independent non-executive
Director who was appointed in September 2004. Mr. Yeung is a
Practising Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong and senior
member of the accountancy professions, i.e. Fellow, Chartered
Institute of Management Accountant; Fellow, Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants; Fellow, Chartered Institute of Secretaries
and Administrators; Fellow, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung is
presently the Chairman of a private management consultancy
company and the managing partner of a Certified Public Accountant
firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung also serves as Chairman or Director

of several private companies.

Professor Ching Pak Chung, aged 52, is an independent non-
executive Director who was appointed in October 2004. Prof. Ching
is presently Head of Shaw College, Director of the Shun Hing
Institute of Advanced Engineering and Pro-Vice-Chancellor of The
Chinese University of Hong Kong (“CUHK”). He was elected Dean
of Engineering from 1998 till end of 2003. Prof. Ching pursued his
studies at the University of Liverpool of United Kingdom. He received
his bachelor’s degree (first class honors) and doctoral degree in
1977 and 1981 respectively. Then, he continued his research at
School of Electrical Engineering of the University of Bath and was
back to Hong Kong in 1982, when he started teaching at the
Department of Electronic Engineering of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. In 1984, Prof. Ching joined the Department of Electronic
Engineering of CUHK and was promoted to Chair Professor in 1999.

Prof. Ching has all along participated actively in various
professional activities. Besides serving in different capacities for the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (HKIE), and the Institute of
Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE), he is an elected Council
Member of the Institution of Electrical Engineers (IEE) between
2002 and 2005. Prof. Ching also devotes his time on public services.
He is a member of the Consumer Council, Chairman of the Hong
Kong Accreditation Advisory Board, member of the Electricity Safety

Advisory Committee and member of the Copyright Tribunal.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lai Siu Chung, aged 38, is the financial controller, qualified
accountant and company secretary of the Group. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Lai obtained his a bachelor of business
administration degree from La Trobe University, Australia and master
of arts degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai
had worked in a GEM-listed company immediately prior to joining

the Group in June 2005.

Mr. Lee Chiu Shing, aged 38, is the regional manager of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 1998. He is responsible for
development of the Japanese market for the Group’s products. He
has over twelve years of working experience in electronics industry,
including stationing as an electronic engineer in Japan for two years.
Mr. Lee is responsible for setting up the operation, staff training,
business development and technical support for the Group’s joint
venture company in Japan. He also takes the position of product
quality assurance manager and is in charge of the quality assurance

activities of the Group.

Ms. Leung Pui Shan, Lydia, aged 35, is the marketing
communications manager of the Group. She has over ten years of
experience in corporate communications, marketing, promotions and
event management. Prior to joining the Group in September 1998,
Ms. Leung had worked for listed companies in Hong Kong and
high-technology fields. Ms. Leung holds master of science degree in
marketing from the University of Stirling, the UK and master of arts

degree in communication and new media from the City University.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code”) takes effect from 1 January
2005. Except for the deviations as disclosed on this report, the
Company has complied with the Code by establishing a formal and
transparent procedures to protect and maximize the interests of

shareholders throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all directors
confirmed they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors

for the year ended 30 June 2006.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, one
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Directors
are set out on the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior

Management” of this annual report.

The Board of directors is responsible for the overall strategic
development of the Group. It also monitors the financial performance
and internal control of the Group’s business operations. Executive
Directors are responsible for running the Group and executing the
strategies adopted by the Board. The Board delegate day-to-day
activities to the management with department heads responsible for
different aspects of the business. Management is required to present
an annual budget and any proposal for major investments and

changes in business strategies for the Board’s approval.

The Non-Executive Directors serve the relevant function of
bringing independent judgment on the development, performance
and risk management of the Group through their contributions in
board meetings. They are also serving on audit committee and
remuneration committee. Through their active participation, they
provide their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board
and the committees on which they serve so that the management

process can be critically reviewed and controlled.
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In full compliance with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
directors and at least one of them has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are

independent.

The Board meets at least four times a year to review the financial
and operating performance of the Company. There were four regular
board meetings held in the financial year ended 30 June 2006. Details

of the attendance of the Board are as follows:

1y A TH R SE CRIZEMR BT AR 55 5.05(1) & (2)
> ARNAIE BT =B B/ L ERITES > 5P
I b — N B A A 7 0 2128 e as s e 51 O R B
BFHER - AAFR IR THB T FERITESH
PE CAI M T B 45 50016 i KR 2 5 A B
T8 T VE 0 A AR o AN W) ER 2y BT A 8 L AT
G 3k RYANGS W)

HH GG E A E DI Digwi A
B RE TS R R R B » i —FEREANA=TH
1k W B R L BT I OE W E R ek o A B
FEBWEHFOT

Name of Director HHREUA Attended/eligible to attend
W AaEwmE

Executive Directors WATHEF
Dr. Chan Chok Ki B 1 2 il 1

(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (LR AT A8 #,) 3/4
Dr. Ma Chi Kit TG S AL 2/4
Mr. Ho Ka Ho EE e 4/4
Non-executive Directors FEFITESR
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat R A B Tl L 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors W or JEPATE S
Prof. Siu Wan Chi i BIRCE € 4/4
Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki, JP 5 B B Se A K AL 3/4
Prof. Ching Pak Chung AN 2% 4/4

During the regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss
and formulate the overall strategies of the Company, review and
monitor the business and financial performances and discuss the
quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, as well as discuss and
decide on other significant matters. The company secretary records
the proceedings of each board meeting by keeping minutes, including
the record of all decisions by the board together with concerns
raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Draft of board minutes
are circulated to all directors for comment and approval as soon as
practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on request by any director.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly

established and set out in writing.

At present, Dr. Chan Chok Ki is both the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company who is responsible for managing
the Board and the Group’s business. Dr. Chan has been both the
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company since its
incorporation. The Group consider that Dr. Chan has in-depth
knowledge in the Group’s business and can make appropriate
decisions promptly and efficiently. The combination of the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer can effectively formulate and
implement the Group’s strategies. The Group also consider that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company as the board of
directors, which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals,
meets regularly to discuss issues affecting the operations of the
Group. The Group considered that, at its present size, there is no
imminent need to segregate the role of chairman and chief executive

officer.

Non-Executive Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Code
Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a causal
vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after their appointment, and every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

At present, the independent non-executive directors are not
appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association. In addition, not every director is subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Directors are subject to
rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company (that at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
directors for the time being or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not greater than one-third, shall
retire from office) provided that notwithstanding anything therein,
the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining the
number of directors to retire in each year. At such, with the exception

of the chairman, all directors are subject to retirement by rotation
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in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. The Group
considered that the continuity of office of the chairman provides
the Group a strong and consistent leadership and is of great
importance to the smooth operations of the Group. Therefore, there
is no imminent need to amend the Articles of Association of the

Company.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

No nomination committee was established by the Company.

The Board is mainly responsible for identifying suitable
candidates for members of the Board when there is a vacancy or any
additional director is considered necessary. The Board will review
the qualifications of the relevant candidate for determining the
suitability to the Group on the basis of his qualifications, experience

and background.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by two board committees. Each committee has its defined
scope of duties and terms of reference and the committee members
are empowered to make decisions on matters within the terms of

reference of each committee.

(1) Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference based upon the guidelines recommended by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the

mandatory provisions set out in the Code.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, quarterly reports
and half-yearly report and to provide advice and comment thereon
to the board of directors. The audit committee will also be
responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting
and internal control procedures of the Group. The audit committee
has three members comprising three independent non-executive
directors, namely Professor Siu Wan Chi, Professor Ching Pak Chung
and Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki, JP. Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki, JP is the chairman

of the audit committee.
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The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results for the year
ended 30 June 2006 have been reviewed by the audit committee. It
has also reviewed the audited financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2006 with management and the Company’s external auditors
and recommended its adoption by the Board. The audit committee
had held four meetings during the current financial year. Individual

attendance of each committee member at these meetings is as follows:

FREZAGOFEMALIEE “FFNFEAA
= H AR R RS S T h SR AT o HOR
T B B R R A > W) B A0 I A i A
TORNAENA =+ HALF W Bk >

ERE R ERA o RAMBEFEER > FEEAS
MR R BATINR Gk o %% B &R EBR % &k
SR (S SRR TRV U N

Name of Director WA Attended/eligible to attend
R

Independent Non-executive Directors W I BUAT E I

Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki, JP 155 1 ¥ 5 A= k7 s+ 3/4

Prof. Siu Wan Chi [LBIREE: €54 4/4

Prof. Ching Pak Chung AN 2% 4/4

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit committee
meetings. In line with practices consistent with board meetings,
draft and final versions of audit committee meeting minutes are
circulated to all members of the audit committee for comments,

approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The members of the audit committee are granted the authority
to full and unlimited access to all books and accounts of the
Company and any employees, consultants and advisers they may,

from time to time, wish to consult.

The main duties of the audit committee are as follows:

. Reviewing, in draft form, the Company’s annual report
and accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and
providing advice and comments thereon to the Board. In

this regard:

. members of the committee must liaise with the

Board, senior management and the person
appointed as the issuer’s qualified accountant and
the committee must meet, at least once a year,

with the Company’s auditors; and

3 the committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in such reports and accounts and must give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised
by the Company’s qualified accountant, compliance

officer or auditors.
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. Reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial

reporting and internal control procedures.

Other duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its specific

terms of reference which is posted on the Group’s website.

(2) Remuneration Committee

According to the Code, the Company has established a
remuneration committee in September 2005 and the primary duties
of the remuneration committee are to formulate and make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for all the remuneration of the Directors and Senior Management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedures
for developing policy on such remuneration. The remuneration
committee comprises two Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and Prof. Ching Pak Chung, and one
Non-Executive Director, namely, Dr. Chan Cheung Fat. The
chairman of the committee is Dr. Chan Cheung Fat. It is scheduled
to meet at least once a year and the quorum necessary for the

transaction of business is two.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the
financial year under review. The committee has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of service contracts of the Directors and
considers that the existing terms of the service contracts are fair

and reasonable.

The specific terms of reference of the remuneration committee

has been posted on the Group’s website.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the performance of external auditors, the audit fee, and
any question of resignation or dismissal. The external auditors’ fee
is to be negotiated with management of the Company, and annually
analyzed for the audit committee’s review. The audit committee is
also responsible for reviewing the extent of non-audit services

provided by the external auditors in relation to their independence.

The remuneration in respect of services provided by the external

A% 4 i 357 T

AR AW FELZ B G A EH R MNE AR £
Bl BB - DL R AR AT A B R s AR B9 R
JE o AN A B 2 T 2R B % W) IR wE R o S
HESMEEZZ R GRS 2N - EEZ AT
T A M AZ BRI 4 28 ST L 2B D I AR S T
014 JF A O B B -

WE BENER CFRERENA =T HILE
S A T B 3% A 5 4 A R S N 20 T

auditors for the year ended 30 June 2006 and 2005 is analysed as B
follows: o
For the year ended 30 June
WEAH=ZTHILEE
2006 2005
SREAE CFRAK
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T T
Annual audit A A% 385 286
Non-audit services — quarterly/interim result review FRZBRH - TR R E M 40 78

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and in presenting
the quarterly and annual financial statements, and announcements
to shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced and

understandable assessment of the Company’s position and prospects.

The Directors’ responsibilities in preparing financial statements
and the auditors’ responsibilities are set out in the Auditors’ Report

on page 29 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal
control system. The Company convened meetings periodically to

discuss financial, operational and risk management control. The

A B B R AR B AT

AR R A A B AT A B AR B A R I
N T M B WA o ] SR 5 IR L Y B RS AR o T AE )
Je SR A B 7 R R A AR IR R S R RS
SR AN RIAR B B2 il 5 2 7 B0 SF- i T B AR G 5T
fl

T RSB R B AT PR R B TAT - W
A AR AF 2 0 55 20 1A A% W i

A B

AN F EE WA R IR A AR A - DL LR A
B AR A AR o Ay A E W H B
DA i S B~ 28 el B B B P L o R
B N R IR B 20 w8 20 e A S R R

audit committee also discuss the internal control process with the H e
management of the Company from time to time.
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LOOKING FORWARD Je 2

The Board of Directors of the Company believe that good RAFFERGMHE - BRI EE BRI A R
corporate governance can safeguard the effective allocation of 43 TE R R PR B R ARORE 2 o AR N WS A A A R
resources and safeguard shareholders’ interest. The Company will IR e A wf HL AR SR VR R MR T S 5 ) BRORUT
keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards on a timely TATE) > LLHELR AT & A BHAE ) S AR e » (5 0k 22
basis and the Board endeavours to take the necessary actions to I A 36 IR R BLST D) B A SC e
ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance

Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company with its shares
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in

notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2006 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 30.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial

Statements.

SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the share option schemes of the Company are set out

in note 25 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 30 June 2006:

(i) The Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total turnover.
(ii))  The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers

accounted for 18% and 47%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases (not including purchases of items which

are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates (within the meaning of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”)) or any shareholders who owned more than
5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest in the Group’s

five largest suppliers.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders as at 30 June 2006 comprised share premium and
retained profits in aggregate amounting to approximately
HK$20,193,000 (2005: HK$22,566,000) provided that, after
distribution, the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall

due in the ordinary course of business.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Dr. Chan Chok Ki
Dr. Ma Chi Kit

Mr. Ho Ka Ho

Non-executive director:

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat

Independent non-executive directors:
Professor Siu Wan Chi

Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki, JP

Professor Ching Pak Chung

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Dr. Ma Chi Kit and Professor Siu Wan Chi retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,

being eligible, offers themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each non-executive director is the period
up to his retirement or rotation in accordance with the Company’s

Articles of Association.

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of one year commencing 1
April 2001, which will continue thereafter unless and until

terminated by either party by giving six months’ prior written notice.

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat has entered into a two-year consultancy
agreement with the Company commencing 1 April 2001 under which
he has agreed to act as a research and development consultant to
the Group on a part-time basis. The service period of such agreement
has been extended and will continue unless and until terminated by

either party by giving three months’ prior notice.
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Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which

is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment

of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS

At 30 June 2006, the interests of the directors and their associates
in the shares and share options of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which are required pursuant

to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares:

(a)

(b)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

Name of director

£ 3

Dr. Chan Chok Ki

Bl A 5 1 L

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat
PR A 9% 1

Share options

Name of director

WA

Dr. Chan Chok Ki
Bk AE ik ol L

Dr. Ma Chi Kit

M5 R A Tl

Mr. Ho Ka Ho

o] R 58 e A

Capacity

&

Held by controlled corporation (note 1)
W A2 A (A1)
Held by controlled corporation (note 1)

Hi 52 P i F B (B RED)

Capacity
g0y

Beneficial owner (note 2)
B A N (Kf7E2)
Beneficial owner (note 2)
Ea A N (Mit2)
Beneficial owner (note 2)

o BN (B at2)
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(a) A B H0.01 % 0 2 % A B

Number of

issued the issued
ordinary share capital
shares held of the Company
A OBIT AN BT
W e H JBe A B e
104,000,000 57.8%
104,000,000 57.8%

(b) B RE

Number of

share underlying

options held shares

T A B R M H HH B Jke 4 % H

2,700,000 2,700,000

2,160,000 2,160,000

2,044,000 2,044,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS
— continued

Notes:

(1) These shares, representing approximately 57.8% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2006,
are held by Etin City Limited, which is owned by Etin
Tech Limited and CityU Enterprises Limited in the
proportion of 70% and 30%, respectively. Etin Tech
Limited is owned by Dr. Chan Chok Ki, Dr. Chan Cheung
Fat, Dr. Ma Chi Kit and Mr. Ho Ka Ho in the proportion
of approximately 44.3%, 34.3%, 14.3% and 7.1%,
respectively. As Dr. Chan Chok Ki and Dr. Chan Cheung
Fat are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
30% or more of the voting power in general meetings of
Etin Tech Limited, they are deemed to be interested in
the entire shares in the Company held by Etin City

Limited.

2) The share options are granted to the directors pursuant
to the share option schemes adopted by the Company,
details of which are set out in note 25 to the financial

statements.

Save as disclosed above, and other than a nominee share in a
subsidiary held by a director in trust for the Group, at 30 June
2006, none of the directors of the Company nor their associates had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes as described in note 25 to
the financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the directors,
their spouses or children under the age of eighteen, had any rights
to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any

such rights during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the related party transaction disclosed in note 30 to
the financial statements, no contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section headed
“Directors’ Interests in Shares and Share Options”, the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO discloses no person as having a notifiable
interest or short position in the issued share capital of the Company
as at 30 June 2006.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-

NON-EXECUTIVE

executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are

independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance

and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out

in note 25 to the financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The directors believe that none of the directors nor the
management shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business, which competes or may

compete with the business of the Group.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The audit committee has three members comprising three
independent non-executive directors, namely Professor Siu Wan Chi,

Professor Ching Pak Chung and Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki, JP.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
company’s annual report and financial statements, quarterly reports
and half-yearly report and to provide advice and comment thereon
to the board of directors. The audit committee will also be
responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting

and internal control procedures of the Group.

The audit committee has reviewed the draft of this report and

has provided advice and comments thereon.

The audit committee held four meetings during the year ended

30 June 2006.
AUDITORS
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of

the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 14 September 2006
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Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TELEEYE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of TeleEye Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) on pages
30 to 75 which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 30 June
2006 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14 September 2006
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) CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

W & &R

For the year ended 30 June 2006 B#ZE =TT XFA=1tHILFE

2006 2005
SRBAE  EEBHE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Mt it Tt DR
Revenue e A 37,356 27,492
Cost of sales §H B R AR (19,565) (12,596)
Gross profit Sevil 17,791 14,896
Other income HoAb g A 7 874 494
Distribution costs I3 8 A (8,562) (7,714)
Administrative expenses 17 H (6,492) (6,962)
Research and development expenditure W 7% J& %% & 32 3 (3,820) (4,214)
Loss for the year 4F i 15 8 (209) (3,500)
Attributable to: LR At EAL
Equity holders of the Company AN AR TR N (273) (3,284)
Minority interests D BT R i 64 (216)
(209) (3,500)
Basic loss per share B G EL R i 48 11 (0.15 centsfll) (1.82 centsfil
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
2006 F E F B R 2 B /5 B 2 &



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ©&&a BEaE S

At 30 June 2006 R=ZZE R FAA=1H

2006 2005
ZRBANH ZERENAR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it 7 T#T T o
Non-current assets IE i B &
Property, plant and equipment L/E & ] 12 700 1,080
Capitalised development costs B AR &AL 13 1,599 1,661
Interest in an associate AR/ P 15 - -
Available-for-sale investments it R g 16 3,780 —
Investments in securities HmHERE 16 - 4,379
6,079 7,120
Current assets i )
Inventories T8 17 8,775 6,341
Trade and other receivables JRE WAz FH% 3 e L At R Wiz 3K 18 5,847 3,362
Amount due from an associate JRE WS W 42 N | 2 R 19 63 129
Bank balances and cash SRAT 4% Bk I & 20 13,354 16,339
28,039 26,171
Current liabilities i ) £ K
Trade and other payables JRE A B 3 K HL At JE AF 3K 21 4,768 3,779
Amounts due to minority shareholders AT 2 B 3 3k IH 22 474 377
Amounts due to directors JRE A} 3 S5 3K TH 23 92 92
5,334 4,248
Net current assets B & E A 22,705 21,923
28,784 29,043
Capital and reserves B A T it
Share capital B As 24 1,800 1,800
Reserves fiti A 27,232 27,539
Equity attributable to equity holders ZNYNEIE ETEREE N
of the Company JRE A 2 R 4 29,032 29,339
Minority interests W R HE i (248) (296)
28,784 29,043

The financial statements on pages 30 to 75 were approved and F30RT7SH Z MH R RLH F G ZFENEN
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14 September H 0 H A R AZRERIED > 3lf By R 5 R

2006 and are signed on its behalf by: HEEE -
DR. CHAN CHOK KI Bt/ 2% 1 -+ MR. HO KA HO fif 58 5 58 4=
Director # Director #
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
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7) BALANCE SHEET EE BB %

At 30 June 2006 R=ZZRFESA=1+H

2006 2005
SRBAFE B ERAF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it 7t T T o

Non-current asset I i B & =
Investments in a subsidiary B A W 2 A 14 10 10

Current assets i B
Other receivables L Aty JEE iz K 67 68
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFRE iz R 2 ) K I 23 17,184 19,783
Bank balances SRAT 45 B 20 5,536 5,332
22,787 25,183
Current liabilities i iB=Ki

Other payables Al JRE A 712 735
Amounts due to directors JE £} 3 =5 3K IH 23 92 92
804 827
Net current assets B & R (E 21,983 24 356
21,993 24,366

Capital and reserves B A R At
Share capital il 24 1,800 1,800
Reserves i A6 26 20,193 22,566
21,993 24,366

DR. CHAN CHOK KI Bfi /F & 18 -
Director & #

ANNUAL REPORT
2 006 fF R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #=& #

For the year ended 30 June 2006 B#Z =TT AFA=+HILFE

o)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AR AT g A ARG
[nvestment
Share Share  Translation  revaluation Special Minority
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve Deficit Total interests Total
B% HY
Bk RBEE O ERGE O EHRE SR B At BEER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T T T
At July 2004 REZZNELA—H 1,800 21,605 (81) (257) 14,990 (6,179) 31878 (87) 31,791
Exchange differences on translation [ #5158 2 Ik B
of overseas operations sk BN £ = = 03 = = = 03 I 10
Surplus on revaluation of RETHAHR
investments - - - 682 - - 682 - 682
Net income recognised ERMERR N2
directly in equity NG - - 63 682 - - 745 7 75
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (3,284) (3.284) (216) (3,500)
Total recognised income FEREDRA
(expense) for the year (F ) % - - 63 682 - (3,284) (2,539) (209) (2,748)
At 30 June 2005 REZZFEEAAZ1H 1,800 21,605 (18) 45 14,990 (9.463) 29339 (296) 29,043
Exchange differences on translation #5151 7 2 Ik A i
of overseas operations EhZERER - = (67) = = = (67) (16) (83)
Gain on fair value changes of i B (A
available-for-sale investments 28 & - - - 318 - - 318 - 318
Net (expense) income recognised HEEELNEDZ
directly in equity (B 30) AT 8 - - (67) 318 - - 251 (16) 235
Realisation of revaluation reserve & A ik & f 5 5
on disposal of available-for-sale B{h R
investments - - - (285) - - (285) - (285)
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (73) () 64 (209)
Total recognised income FEREDRA
(expense) for the year (F3%) % - - (67) 3 - (n) (307) 48 (259)
At 30 June 2006 REZZFAEARZ1H 1,800 21,605 (85) 458 14,990 (9,736) 29,032 (48) 28,784
Attributed to an associate: VAL V- UNGbA 2
At 30 June 2006 and 2005 REFFRER-RFLE
ARZTH - - (99) - - (961) (1,060) = (1,060)

AR SR J 2 A AR 0 A AR SRR B T — 4R 0 H
A7 45 T A A R 1 N 2 R TR Y A R 2 AR T (E
SN A BEAT AR By O A 2 T (W

nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company as HH o

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the aggregate of the nominal value of share capital of the subsidiaries

acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in April 2001 and the

consideration for the acquisition.

ANNUAL REPORT
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. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #= &R € n £ &

For the year ended 30 June 2006 B#ZE =TT XFA=1tHILFE

2006 2005
ZRBANE g 5 S i 2
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#T T T

OPERATING ACTIVITIES B
Loss for the year R R (209) (3,500)
Adjustments for: BT 5 IE B F

Amortisation of capitalised development costs BE R AR AL 2 #E 803 1,219

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W~ B m IR 2 B e 568 581

Write down (reversal of write-down) of inventories 17 B MO (s 38 1)) 201 47)

Allowance for loan to an associate 45T W s ) B AR 67 -

(Recovery of allowance) allowance for bad (Ui [m] S 2 B g ) SR 5

and doubtful debts W 73 A (124) 172

Dividend income B e A (164) (126)

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments o 45 T B R Y i AR 277) =

Interest income FE A (358) (342)

Impairment loss on capitalised development costs A AL B B A 2 B T 4 - 235

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - BRE K2 EE - 3
Operating cash flows before movements BEEEBHH Z

in working capital W R 507 (1,805)
(Increase) decrease in inventories e () B (2,635) 845
Increase in trade and other receivables R sz B R R L At JRE s 3k 3 o (2,349) (1,306)
(Increase) decrease in amount due from an associate MU /A 7 2 3 IA (8 0) 3 4 (1) 280
Increase in trade and other payables JRE A B sk % L At BB ASF 5 38 989 296
Increase in amounts due to directors J& A5 #E T 2 S TE 4 - 5
Cash used in operations JE F iR 46 B 2 B4 (3,489) (1,685)
Interest received B EiPsS 358 342
Overseas tax refunded 3R [8] g A1 Bl T - 22
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES JE R R R 2 Bl iR (3,131) (1,321)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RHERHE
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments & #J ik B 5 Y BT A5 K E 909 -
Dividend income received Bk i Bl A 152 103
Increase in capitalised development costs BE R A AR AL 1 (741) (1,097)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WA 2E - S T R A (183) (428)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING JH (ERR) REEE B &

ACTIVITIES FA 137 (1,422)
FINANCING ACTIVITY (Y e
Advance from a minority shareholder DB R 2 B 97 45
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B4 J& 31 4 % 5 4 W A 5 (2,897) (2,698)
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ON TRANSLATION 0 B0 2 Y E S0 25 B (88) 70
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING A B0 B B 4 B 4 S

OF THE YEAR 16,339 18,967
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS T 4E 4 B4 B B 4 5 B

AT END OF THE YEAR,

represented by bank balances and cash (BR SR AT & i B &) 13,354 16,339
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7% g 5 B¢ 5

For the year ended 30 June 2006 #Z T T AFAA=+RHILFE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding
company is Etin Tech Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section of Corporate Information of this annual

report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of

the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in note

14 and 15, respectively.

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Company and the Group has applied,
for the first time, a number of new Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS(s)”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that
are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2005. The application of the new HKFRSs has resulted
in a change in the presentation of the income statement, balance
sheet and the statement of changes in equity. In particular, the
presentation of minority interests has been changed. The
changes in presentation have been applied retrospectively. The
adoption of the new HKFRSs has resulted in changes to the
Company’s and the Group’s accounting policies in the following
areas but has had no material impact on how the results and
financial position for the current or prior accounting years are
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment

has been required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7% g 5 B 5+

For the year ended 30 June 2006 B#ZE =TT XFA=1tHILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS - continued

Share-based Payments

In the current year, the Company and the Group has applied
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment which requires an expense to
be recognised where the Company and the Group buys goods
or obtains services in exchange for shares or rights over shares
(“equity-settled transactions™), or in exchange for other assets
equivalent in value to a given number of shares or rights over
shares (“cash-settled transactions”). The principal impact of
HKFRS 2 on the Group is in relation to the expensing of the
fair value of directors’ and employees’ share options of the
Company determined at the date of grant of the share options
over the vesting period. Prior to the application of HKFRS 2,
the Company and the Group did not recognise the financial
effect of these share options until they were exercised. In
relation to share options granted before 1 January 2005, the
Company and the Group chooses not to apply HKFRS 2 with
respect to share options granted on or before 7 November 2002
and vested before 1 January 2005. Since all the options granted
by the Company had been vested before 1 January 2005, no

prior period adjustment is required.

Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Company and the Group has applied
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. HKAS 32 requires retrospective application.
HKAS 39, which is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2005, generally does not permit to recognise,
derecognise or measure financial assets and liabilities on a
retrospective basis. The application of HKAS 32 has had no
material impact on how financial instruments of the Company
and the Group are presented for current and prior accounting
periods. The application of HKAS 39 has had no material impact
on how the results and financial position of the Company are
presented for the current and prior accounting periods. The
principal effects resulting from the implementation of HKAS

39 on the Group are summarised below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in
HKAS 39 with respect to classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities that are within the scope

of HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf 7% g 5 B¢ 5

For the year ended 30 June 2006 #Z T T AFAA=+RHILFE

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS - continued

Financial Instruments — continued

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities — continued

By 30 June 2005, the Group classified and measured its debt
and equity securities in accordance with the alternative
treatment of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24
(“SSAP 247”). Under SSAP 24, investments in debt or equity
securities are classified as “trading securities”, “non-trading
securities” or “held-to-maturity investments” as appropriate.
Both “trading securities” and “non-trading securities” are
measured at fair value. Unrealised gains or losses of “trading
securities” are reported in the profit or loss for the period in
which gains or losses arise. Unrealised gains or losses of “non-
trading securities” are reported in equity until the securities
are sold or determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
included in the net profit or loss for that period. From 1 July
2005 onwards, the Group classifies and measures its debt and
equity securities in accordance with HKAS 39. Under HKAS
39, financial assets are classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss”, “available-for-sale financial
assets”, “loans and receivables”, or “held-to-maturity financial
assets”. “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
and “available-for-sale financial assets” are carried at fair value,
with changes in fair values recognised in profit or loss and
equity, respectively. “Loans and receivables” and “held-to-
maturity financial assets” are measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method after initial recognition.

On 1 July 2005, the Group classified and measured its debt
and equity securities in accordance with the transitional
provisions of HKAS 39 where the non-trading securities of
HK$4,379,000 are classified as available-for-sale financial assets
and the cumulative unrealised gains or losses previously
reported in investment revaluation reserve under equity section
continue to be in equity. On subsequent derecognition or
impairment of the investment, the unrealised gain or loss

remaining in equity will be transferred to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7% g 5 B 5+

For the year ended 30 June 2006 B#ZE =TT XFA=1tHILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS - continued

Financial Instruments — continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities other than debt and equity
securities

From 1 July 2005 onwards, the Group has classified and
measured its financial assets and financial liabilities other than
debt and equity securities (which were previously outside the
scope of SSAP 24) in accordance with the requirements of HKAS
39. As mentioned above, financial assets under HKAS 39 are
classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss”, “available-for-sale financial assets”, “loans and
receivables” or “held-to-maturity financial assets”. Financial
liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method after initial recognition.

The Company and the Group has not early applied the following
new standards, amendments and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of these standards, amendments
and interpretations will have no material impact on the result

and financial position of the Company and the Group.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. JERFEHEMEREEA — 8

REPORTING STANDARDS - continued

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
s & st eI 198 (B RTAS)
HKAS 19 (Amendment)
F G FHE L 1058 (BRTA)
HKAS 21 (Amendment)
Fs g RIS 2198 (BRTA)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
s & at e I 553058 (B R A%)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
G EHE R 3058 (BRI A)
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 (Amendments)
B & R 2R 3058 K

B 1 B i At e ) 2R 498 (BT A%)
HKFRS 6
T W B 5 A B R 2R 6 5%
HKFRS 7
A v B 5 i T 7%
HKFRS — INT 4
B s RS R At e U e R AR 498
HKFRS — INT 5

A v SV o U R A 5 R
HK(IFRIC) — INT 6

ik (BB ME G B 22 B /) i B ot

HK(IFRIC) — INT 7

k(B MR RS MES e B 22 B ) i RS 7R

HK(IFRIC) — INT 8

Tk (B X 85 ME SR e B 2% B &) i RS 8t

HK(IFRIC) — INT 9

s (BB MEM G B 22 B &) i B ok

Capital disclosures'

BA B R

Actuarial gains and losses, group plans and disclosures?
GRSk U PSS

Net investment in a foreign operation®

1 41 2 2 BOE T AR

Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup transactions
T4 0 o T2 B 2 B A v i w R B
The fair value option*

A R

Financial guarantee contracts’

S 5 4 AR 5 402

2]

Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources?

il 7 R B R B A2

Financial instruments: Disclosures!

el TH 4 ER I

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease’

i E 2 PE e T B4 AL A

Rights to interests arising from decommissioning,
restoration and environmental rehabilitation funds?

igf I A A~ AR D B BR B A AR < T E R R AR 2 HE 2

Liabilities arising from participating in a specific
market-waste electrical and electronic equipment’

2 BLRRE T 3 — BE R TE ) M R T R T E AR 2 AR

Applying the restatement approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies*

AR5 A e g w R T 55 20 [k B4 AR KR 3 2 B B i A
JRE T 51 3 ¢

Scope of HKFRS 2°

T W I 5 i A ) o 2 5% A o R

Reassessment of embedded derivatives®

A AT AR T H A R T Al

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. LR ZERERLE A — B a2 1R B s 2 A R A
NAERL -
> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006. R TEEINAE— ] — H Bz 4% B ih 2 4F [
NAERL -
> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005. PR SERREST A - HRZEFEGZFEEH
] 7 A= 3 o
+  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006. * AT EBEIREZH — H B AR B 4G 2 4 R
NAERL -
> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006. > AT ERERE A — H B A% BG4 S H
N AR -
®  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006. o R TEFINAEINHA — H B A% B Ik 2 AF B
N AR -
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 B#ZE =TT XFA=1tHILFE

3.

ANNUAL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other member of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
share in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests
of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment

to cover the losses.
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 #Z T T AFAA=+RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Interest in an associate

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments
in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the
associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments

on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s

interest in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and

title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of

the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 B#ZE =TT XFA=1tHILFE

3.

ANNUAL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

if any.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the income statement in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental

expenses over the lease term on a straight line basis.
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 #Z T T AFAA=+RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i. e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange

differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to the Group’s defined contribution retirement
schemes, state-managed benefit schemes and other retirement

benefit schemes are charged as expense as they fall due.
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3.

ANNUAL
2 006 fF R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associate,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow

all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt

with in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses
below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the income statement when the asset is

derecognised.

Research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project
will be recovered through future commercial activity. The
resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its

useful life.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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3.

ANNUAL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Intangible assets — continued

Impairment

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the

asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired (see the accounting policies in respect of impairment

losses for tangible and intangible assets below).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet when an entity of the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit

or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 #Z T T AFAA=+RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place. The accounting policies

adopted are set out below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from an associate and bank balances)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have

been had the impairment not been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as loans and receivable and
not held for trading purpose. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Any impairment loss
on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not reverse through profit or loss in subsequent periods.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring

after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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3.

ANNUAL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by an entity
of the Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of

financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts
due to minority shareholders and directors are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate

method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 #Z T T AFAA=+RHILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been

recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the Group’s
balance sheet (i.e. when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires). The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is

recognised in profit or loss.

Share options granted to directors and employees of the Group
after 1 July 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment transactions
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited or lapsed, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment transactions reserve will be
transferred to deficit. For options granted by the Company
which were vested before 1 January 2005, the fair value of
those share options are not recognised as expenses in

accordance with the transitional provision of HKFRS 2.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible assets
that are not yet ready for use (see the accounting policies in
respect of goodwill and intangible assets above))

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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3.

ANNUAL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible assets
that are not yet ready for use (see the accounting policies in
respect of goodwill and intangible assets above)) — continued
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The critical accounting judgement and key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at
each balance sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items especially technology solution
system identified that are of minimal resale value due to
technological changes. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventory based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions. The Group carries
out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis at the

balance sheet date and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Estimated impairment of capitalised development costs
Determining whether capitalised development costs is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount determined
by the value in use of the capitalised development costs. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the capitalised
development costs and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The Group carries out an
impairment review assessment on a product-by-product basis
in respect of the capitalised development costs at the balance
sheet date and no impairment is made for the year ended 30
June 2006.
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 #Z T T AFAA=+RHILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, trade and other receivables, amount due from
an associate, bank balances, trade and other payables and
amounts due to minority shareholders and directors. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Currency risk

It is the Group’s policy for each operating entity to operate in
local currencies as far as possible to minimise currency risk.
The Group’s principal businesses are conducted and recorded
in Hong Kong dollars, Great British Pound and US Dollars. No
hedging against foreign currency exposure has been carried

out by the management.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 30
June 2006 in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk

is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with

exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.
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5.

ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES - continued

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity security price risk through its
investment in available-for-sale investments. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments

with different risk profiles.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold, less returns and allowances, to outside customers

during the year.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting,
the Group has determined that geographical segment by location

of customers is its primary reporting format.

Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 #Z T T AFAA=+RHILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. rEER - M

Geographical segment M [ 43 4

The Group reports its primary segment information by AEBEUREEF (HEF EZEAREE - Hn
geographical location of its customers who are principally e~ HoAt ER I B 5K - A R R RN ) 2 B AE
located in Hong Kong, Singapore, other Asian countries, Middle B EEERE R o [HA A EW - IF
East and Europe. Others include locations like the Americas, DN B VR S5 3t [ o DATR B e bl b [ ) 43 2
Africa and Australia. Segment information about these Mz B Er

geographical markets is presented below:

2006
SREBALE
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong Singapore countries East Europe Others  Eliminations  Consolidated
it
Fi A S R i el A H4 &h
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tk T T T Tikn Tk T T
REVENUE O
External sales RANRZHE 5,933 4338 4911 4,755 10905 6,512 - 37,356
Inter-segment sales NEHZHE - 2455 160 - 7,886 - (10,501) -
Total Fik 5,935 6,793 5,071 4,755 18,791 6,512 (10,501) 37,356
SEGMENT RESULT GEEE 2,046 136 960 177 953 1,558 (120) 7433
Unallocated corporate income A #AHHI A AIfTA 874
Unallocated corporate expenses £ B4 #/4 & % i
- Administrative and other ~ B REMER
expenses (4,716)
- Research and development ~ —BF% R B3 th
expenditure (3,820)
Loss for the year EEER (209)
Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage mark- 53 S T 22 B R e AR N HE — T B TR AR R
up. B oo

ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. EER - M
Geographical segment — continued M [ 43 48 — A
2006 — continued TREBNE M
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment PLTR 7 4% 5 5 BT A6 i [ 1) 53 2 43 R E e oy
assets and segment liabilities, analysed by the geographical MEMBRZAREAE Z 70 B -

location of its customers:

Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong  Singapore countries East Europe Others Consolidated
Y]
i Bk AR R ik A ] Ba

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THE TR TEE TR TEE TR TER

ASSETS BiE
Segment assets HEERE 238 1,332 1,031 2 3,604 1 6,228
Unallocated corporate assets B0 T B 27,890
Consolidated total assets SRMEE 34,118

LIABILITIES ffk
Segment liabilities AR 1,528 764 168 372 696 177 3,705
Unallocated corporate liabilities F 447 A 1,629
Consolidated total liabilities LAMAE 5,334

Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong  Singapore countries East Europe Others  Corporate Consolidated
it

it M EWEE R B i | B
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T T T T T T

OTHER INFORMATION Kb¥R
Capital additions EARE - 12 9 = 20 = 142 183
Depreciation & - 2 66 - 27 - 473 568
Development costs capitalised %5 A& B4/ = - - - - - 741 741
Allowance for inventories B B A = = = - - - 201 201

Allowance for loan to BTBEARN
an associate SR - - 67 - - - - 67
Amortisation of capitalised BRNAEAL
development costs B8 = = = - - - 803 803
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. P ER -
Geographical segment — continued M [ 43 48 — A
2005
ZEFHE
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong Singapore countries East Europe Others  Eliminations  Consolidated
i
Ak L S F 3 TR L4 Kt B Ba
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tk TibT TibT T Tt Tikx Tk T

REVENUE BA
External sales KEAMFHE 6,878 1874 4214 2028 8408 3,090 - 27492
Inter-segment sales AR HE - 874 299 . 4267 - (5,440)
Total A 6,878 3,748 4513 2,028 12,675 3,090 (5,440) 27492
SEGMENT RESULT PEES 2926 67 541 785 504 726 (266) 5373
Unallocated corporate income & #|4-#1/4 A/ A 494
Unallocated corporate expenses A #1247l &
- Administrative and ~THREBER
other expenses (5,153)
~ Research and development — R BB S
expenditure (4,214)
Loss for the year EEER (3,500)
Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage mark- O3 JE[A] 2 B 5 O i AR I B — A 0 b v A wE
up. B e

ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 B#ZE =TT XFA=1tHILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. EER - M
Geographical segment — continued M [ 43 48 — A
2005 — continued CREFRH -
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment PLTR 7 4% 5 5 BT A6 i [ 1) 53 2 43 R E e oy
assets and segment liabilities, analysed by the geographical MEMBRZAREAE Z 70 B -

location of its customers:

Other Asian Middle

Hong Kong  Singapore countries East Europe Others Consolidated
H b

it B EWEZR R ik A Kb Ea

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Tl Tkt T T T T T

ASSETS RiE

Segment assets HEEE 583 639 763 18 988 39 3,030
Unallocated corporate assets A B4 0 0 7 30,261
Consolidated total assets BAMEE 33,201
LIABILITIES AU

Segment liabilities A 545 512 121 273 506 389 2,346
Unallocated corporate liabilities & #4102 F & 1R 1,902
Consolidated total liabilities GAMAR 4248

Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong  Singapore countries East Europe Others  Corporate Consolidated
Y]
Bk Fmg EHEER i B it A Ba

HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T T T T Tk Tk Tk

OTHER INFORMATION B R

Capital additions BARE - 3 3 = 19 = 403 428
Depreciation & = 9 83 = 30 = 459 581
Development costs capitalised BRRAEARL - - - - - - 1,097 1,097
Allowance for bad and R IRR

doubtful debts 172 - - - - - - 1N
Amortisation of capitalised % A G4 L

development costs 2B - - - - - - 1,219 1,219
Impairment loss on capitalised % & A& &7t 2

development costs Wi R = = = - - - 235 235
Loss on disposal of property, H &% » FE &

plant and equipment B4 3 - - - - - - 3

ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 6. rEER - M

Geographical segment — continued M [ 43 48 — A

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment DUTR B $ 6 B T AE b [ 43 2 4y R R B 2 R
assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment and T (B B ) 2 ~ B B R i BOE A b 38 e B AR
capitalised development costs analysed by the geographical area ZIRBEZHT e

in which the assets are located.

Additions to
property, plant
and equipment

and capitalised

Carrying amounts development costs
of segment assets L/E B2 & ]
43 JEUEE A 2 R T A B % A AL Z S B
2006 2005 2006 2005
ZERRNHF ZERE A TREBNME —EBEHLE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#T T# oo T#T T# T
Hong Kong W 25,907 29,707 883 1,500
Singapore B0 1,841 1,100 12 -
Other Asian countries FH i 55 #if [0 5¢ 758 969 9 6
Europe B P 5,612 1,515 20 19
34,118 33,201 924 1,525
Business segments EXPig |
The Group is solely engaged in research and development and 7 42 B AR A B B A R ot 2 W T R B R -
sales and marketing of audio and video monitoring systems. B B BTl B 4R R - SR o AR AL 2 BT A i
Accordingly, all of the Group’s revenue, operating results and A~ BEERRBEEC AL EL 48 -
assets were attributable to this business segment.
OTHER INCOME 7. A A
2006 2005
SRRAE EBEARE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T# T
Other income is analysed as follows: HA A Z o Hrin R -
Interest income from P E L TIEE Z A Bl A
— bank deposits — $RAT A7 K 354 338
— loan to an associate — & TBE A E 2 B 4 4
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments i 8 1] fi H} £ 5 & 19 Uk #5 277 -
Dividends income from listed equity securities T RE A T RE R Y SR A 164 126
Others Ho A 75 26
874 494

ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
2006 % # F 2 B 2 K B B 2 @
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8. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 8. FEEH
2006 2005
SRRAE BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T# T
Loss for the year has been arrived at after FEFEFHEC IR (FEA)
charging (crediting):
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments B T RA (G4 = 5 4) 12,000 11,821
Retirement benefits scheme contributions B R AR A At R 601 584
Total staff costs B LA 48 %8 12,601 12,405
Less: Amount capitalised as development costs W G A AL B A R AR
Z IR (741) (1,097)
11,860 11,308
(Recovery of allowance) allowance for bad (W ] 25 I R FE 4 R B
and doubtful debts B 135 (124) 172
Allowance for loan to an associate FaIni k- /NI ] 67 -
Write-down (reversal of write-down) A7 B WO (R sk 45 1))
of inventories 201 47)
Amortisation of capitalised development costs R A G A AL 2 5
included in research and development (23 AW 78 S 88 i 32 )
expenditure 803 1,219
Auditors’ remuneration A% i P <5 385 286
Net foreign exchange (gains) losses SNt HE St Ol 73) e 48 i3 3R (583) 15
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W B Rz Y e 568 581
Impairment loss on capitalised development costs %% & i A & A fb 2 I8 {H 5 18 - 235
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - W Mk
equipment ) is! - B
9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EHFKEEMWE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2005: 8) CATSEM 72 (T HAE - 84) EF & B
directors were as follows: P 8 40
2006
R
Professor Professor
Dr. Chan Dr. Ma Mr.Ho  Dr. Chan Siu Mr. Yeung Ching
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo Cheung Fat ~ Wan Chi ~ Kwok Ki Pak Chung Total
B L BUMEL MREELE REREL BARAR GRmELE BEhHE ki
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
T#r  T#x  Téx  T#Ex  Téx  Téx  T#ExT  TéEx
Fees % = = = = 60 60 60 180
Other emoluments HAb 2
Salaries and other benefits e 2,004 720 616 187 - - - 3,527
Contribution to retirement AR AR A 71 Bl 2K
benefit schemes 12 12 12 - - - - 36
Total emoluments L 2,016 732 628 187 60 60 60 3,743
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye

Holdings Limited
2006 % E: F B R £ B A R 2 =
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS - 9. EHLREMSE —#
continued
2005
2 %
Professor Professor
Dr. Chan Dr. Ma Mr.Ho  Dr. Chan Siu Mr. Yeung Ching Dr. Liao
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo Cheung Fat ~ Wan Chi Kwok Ki  Pak Chung York Total
WREdE  REMEE WREEE WHEENL BARAE RESEE BOPHEE  BAENL bk
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T T T
(Note)
(BEE)
Fees ik - - - - 65 18 41 - 154
Other emoluments RS
Salaries and other benefits  #i R MR 1837 70 616 187 - - - - 3,360
Contribution to retirement SR AR 3 3
benefit schemes 11 12 12 - - - - - 35
Total emoluments A% 1,848 732 628 187 65 48 41 = 3549
Note: Dr. Liao York resigned as independent non-executive director Bif Gt - BLA st bt B FEIAE + A RS H O
of the Company on 26 October 2004. EA N TV SL IR BUAT EFE W -
The five highest paid individuals included three (2005: three) TE LA A i R B N b s HE A A Al 2 =
directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are set P (ZFERAF - =07) EF > B LA
out above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2005: two) A BRI 5 F o HEBRmAL (ZEETAE - W
individuals, which fall within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000 i) NER# s BTN FE R BT HAFNH
for each of the two years ended 30 June 2006 and 2005, are as T HIEmMEAFEEEANMESE N FEE
follows: 1,000,000%5 7€ - #EIEA1F -
2006 2005
SRRAE  EBEARE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#T T IT
Salaries and other benefits 3 4 M FHo At £ A 1,126 1,171
Retirement benefits scheme contributions AR AR AR ] EE E) fE K 127 132
1,253 1,303

During each of the two years ended 30 June 2006 and 2005, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
In addition, no director waived any emoluments during the

years ended 30 June 2006 and 2005.

ANNUAL
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For the year ended 30 June 2006 B#ZE =TT XFA=1tHILFE

10. TAXATION

11.

ANNUAL

No tax is payable on profit for the year ended 30 June 2006
arising in Hong Kong since the assessable profit is wholly
absorbed by tax losses brought forward. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax had been made in the financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2005 as the Group incurred tax losses

for that year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss for the

year in the consolidated income statement as follows:

10. BLIE

H P A T ROBE i M) L Bl A R I 1R
UK > WU B E —FEARNEANA =T
1k 47 B2 7 U 7 AR 22 i A8 AT A B I o
BE_FFHFEANA=ZTHIIFEE - divA
4 P A B IEURS 1R o I R B S R R A A
% 4 BE 48 A A o M AL -

i JEC Al R 3k HE R EE A 2 B IE T i A B D A
Xy R T S A

A AE 2 B T SRR A WA AR 3R R AR i 4R
ZE MR

2006 2005
ZRERANG “EFThAF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#T T T
Loss for the year A E s 1R (209) (3,500)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 17.5% 1% 4 Hh fir 15 B Bl 2£17.5%
i AL (37) (612)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7~ °] FI7HL BH 32 = Bi 15 5% 2%
for tax purposes 216 29
Tax effect of income that is not taxable for T ZH R B 2 Bl 15 52 28
tax purposes (88) (79)
Utilisation of tax loss not previously B A R e RR 2
recognised 4 IH )5 18 (272) =
Tax effect of deferred tax assets not % fife R A B T AR 2
recognised Tl 35 5 28 181 614
Others H At - 48
Taxation for the year A AR 2 B IE - =

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 27.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss of
HK$273,000 (2005: HK$3,284,000), being loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company, and 180,000,000 (2005:
180,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 June 2006 and
2005 does not assume the exercise of share options as the

effect resulted in a decrease in loss per share for both years.

REPORT TeleEye Limited

Holdings

2006 % E: F B2 B 2 B B R A =

11.

A0 SIE B TE 2 17 O BV R B 27

B 3

1 BB A i 18 T AR R e 48 (B 7 8 W HE 25 R A
N FEAE 5 18) 273,0008 o0 (- F & fL 4
3,284,000 o) K F BE A B ¥ AT A K
180,000,000/ (&2 fi4E : 180,000,000/%)
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12. W3 - Wb ek i

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor
improvements fixtures equipment vehicle Total
GiNE/E S 393 WA=
L33 HE B W ok
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
R SR T T R Tk 7T
THE GROUP A4
COST AR
At 1 July 2004 =R
tH—H 467 428 2,501 = 3,396
Exchange adjustments EE 52, ] % = = (3) = 3)
Additions RE = 3 182 243 428
Disposals i {5 = = (61) = (61)
At 30 June 2005 i EE A
AH=+H 467 431 2,619 243 3,760
Exchange adjustments e 5e, 74 5% 2 1 17 - 20
Additions RE = 13 170 = 183
Disposals |5 = = (10) = (10)
At 30 June 2006 ANFEEANFESAZTH 469 445 2,796 243 3,953
DEPRECIATION b5
At 1 July 2004 B EFERNELH—H 145 276 1,739 = 2,160
Exchange adjustments [ 3, 5 B - - (3) - (3)
Provided for the year AR JE SR 157 63 341 20 581
Disposals HE - = (58) - (58)
At 30 June 2005 R EEFEERAEANA=1H 302 339 2,019 20 2,680
Exchange adjustments E b, A 2 - 13 - 15
Provided for the year A JE SR 144 45 298 81 568
Disposals ik - - (10) = (10)
At 30 June 2006 NZFEREAH=+H 448 384 2,320 101 3,253
CARRYING VALUES R T
At 30 June 2006 NZEEREANH=1H 21 61 476 142 700
At 30 June 2005 W oEERFENH=1H 165 92 600 223 1,080
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the above Y~ RE Kkt JE B 8 1R T 2 R

items of property, plant and equipment, over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 33'/3% or over the lease term,

whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20% — 33'/5%
Motor vehicle 33'5%

L #3582 LA T o R A 0 % K€ 5 R LA R
e f AL L 20 9 L BRAS > AR AR -

THEYERE 331/3% 5% FH & 1Y
(DA s 2 £y )
1M B e 20%
I /NE T i} 20%—33'5%
TR 331/5%
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
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13. CAPITALISED DEVELOPMENT COSTS

13. B R A E AL

HK$°000
T on
THE GROUP 2% 4
COST R AR
At 1 July 2004 B EZUAELH—H 6,118
Additions PANNER 1,097
At 30 June 2005 RN EEHFERNH=TH 7,215
Additions wE 741
At 30 June 2006 A ZEENFANH=TH 7,956
AMORTISATION 3]
At 1 July 2004 R EENELH] —H 4,100
Provided for the year 74 B R R 1,219
Impairment loss recognised in the year A A B TA) fifE R U (E s 1R 235
At 30 June 2005 AEEHFENH=TH 5,554
Provided for the year ASAE TR 803
At 30 June 2006 A EENFANH=ZTH 6,357
CARRYING VALUES TR
At 30 June 2006 W ZEFENRNFESNH=ZTH 1,599
At 30 June 2005 W EEZHFESNH=ZTH 1,661

T fifE 8 A T EE A BE J AAS o A L AT T H
R G = 4 Y [ DA B AR G o

Development costs recognised as an asset are amortised using
the straight-line method over three years from the date it is

available for use.

HHROZE O HEE M Z I B R KB & R
B oo RA T H B A A LB R A 2 AR T
fl o WAL > MZEEANEANA=ZTHA
JERERR B AE G IR - (AR5 T8 RmRAR =
EEAFENA=THEBUE » EHCE AR5
JERA Z IR A E B ERFENH =+
H 1E 4F B2 322 %9235,0008 TG ©

The directors reviewed the carrying value of the capitalised
development cost at the balance sheet dates with reference to
the discounted future cash flows from the product developed.
They determined that no impairment loss should be made at
30 June 2006, while certain development costs were determined
to have been impaired at 30 June 2005 resulting in the reduction
in the carrying value of the capitalised development costs for

the year ended 30 June 2005 by approximately HK$235,000.

ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
2006 F # F 2 B £ R &8 B 2 7
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14. Kt +

14. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

The Company

PN/
2006 2005
—RBAE  SETAF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# T TH T
Unlisted investment, at cost LW G - RA 10 10

R EENEANAZHH - AR FEMEAF

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 30 June 2006 were

as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operation

Issued and fully
paid up ordinary
share capital/

registered capital

ZFEEIEWR

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered capital

held by the Company

Principal activities

HAR 2 7
BRI K HAZO®T
ol MR S B8 e AR G B AR Z
W i 2 ) 4 H BAEmE A GEMEA i B A Ho FEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE fH] #%
% %
Signal Communications BVI HK$15,000,000 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited 0 R LR 15,000,000 JC BE R
SiCOM China Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
S OE B 1B $E R
SiCOM Europe Limited BVI USS$1 - 100 Investment holding
S Ja e B 1%7T g gedive
SiCOM Far East Limited BVI US$1 - 100 Investment holding
S OE B 1% 7T BE R
SiCOM Japan Limited BVI USS$1 - 100 Investment holding
L Ja B 1% 7T g gedive
Signal Communications Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100 Research and development
Limited s 1,000 76 and sales and
all B BLB A BR 2 F] marketing of audio

ANNUAL REPORT Tel
2006 % # F B

and video monitoring
systems

HMERRARZTHE R
B I I T 0 1 R
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14. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY — continued 14. MHE A= — 5

Proportion of

Place of Issued and fully nominal value of
incorporation/ paid up ordinary issued capital/
registration share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation  registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
H A A 7
C#RIT K A OB
Al M L B 0 e JRe A /A AR 2
W J 2 ) 4 B Bggns  BAGEMEA T fi5 3 BB EEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE fH] #%
% %
TeleEye Europe Limited The United Kingdom GBP100 - 90 Sales and marketing of
P 10035 audio and video
monitoring systems
BEBREERSZ
B9 B T i 355 4k
TeleEye (S) Pte Limited Republic of S$1,000 — 51 Sales and marketing of
Singapore 1,000 i 3 76 audio and video
ok monitoring systems
HEREERSZ
BB T i 355 4 T
TeleEye Solutions Limited Hong Kong HKS$10 = 100 Inactive
THMMAERGARA A i 10# 78 LR
T IR B R () The People’s US$130,000 - 100 Production, sales and
A B2 T (Note) (B 7F) Republic of China 130,000 7T marketing of audio and
(the “PRC”) video monitoring systems
H RS A Y BBEERG L RER
(M) B9 B T i 353 4k T
Note: The company is registered in the form of a wholly foreign Bt at - w% s\ DA & G A AN E A e 2 T G -
owned enterprise.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at A AR A B 5% 4 e BOAS 4F B 22 AT o] IR R A9 A0
the end of the year or at any time during the year. R Jog 2 W) A A 0] 33 AT 2 BT RS 5 o
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
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15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

15. A8 A\ Z HE 2

The Group
e

2006 2005
SEEAAE SRR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# oo T# T
Cost of investment in an associate 5k & N | B E AR 1,060 1,060
Share of post-acquisition losses B A1k i Js 4% T 4R (1,060) (1,060)

Details of the Group’s associate as at 30 June 2006 were as

follows:

Place of
incorporation

Name of associate and operation

AN
AFEEWR

Proportion of

nominal value of

issued capital

held by the Group

FEARA=Z1H REMZEEAN

Principal activities

H A 4R 1

S RA FAEZOC#®T
Tt 22 2 W] 44 7§ e 584 b B JBe A< T E A3y b FEERFH
CAMERIO Japan, Incorporated Japan 49% Sales and marketing of
H A audio and video

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associate is set out below:

o

monitoring systems
BBERRGZ
B B K i 5 T

A I8 A 4 B g v O ) ) o 5 AR R A7) SR

2006 2005

SEEAE  REAE

HK$’000 HK$’000

T# T T

Total assets R E 388 926
Total liabilities MEfR (1,013) (1,341)
(625) (415)

Group’s share of net assets of associate A £ B JRE A T A A D Y S O (B - =

(Loss) profit for the year FERE (5 1R) A (219) 101

Group’s share of results of associate A £ B JRE A W A s D Y 4F B

for the year E¥ - =
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
2006 % E F B2 R £ E B 2 =
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15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE - continued 15.

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of results
of the associate because the accumulated share of post-
acquisition losses equals the cost of investment in the associate.
The amount of unrecognised share of the associate, extracted
from the relevant management amount of the associate, both

for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

W B 8% O Rl 2 WE 2R — A

H A 2 0 Al A A58 s R 4 T T D 4
ERAS o TR AS A T A5 1k A R R R A Y T
BN R ER o AR N B B TR R B A T
Al e AH (W Bk B B w9 A B A AR ) a0
o

2006 2005
TREBANG CEENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T Tt
Unrecognised share of (loss) profit R i R 110 JHE A g A A

of associate for the year ERE (e 48) i A (107) 49

Accumulated unrecognised share R R il R A B A T
of losses of associate i 15 (245) (138)

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (FORMERLY 16.

CLASSIFIED AS INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES)

A A B (DR o B il R )

The Group
AR
2006 2005
TRENAG RN
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong FdsZ b A 7 5 3,780 4,379

At the balance sheet date, all available-for-sale investments are
stated at fair value. Fair values of those investments have been

determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets.

A H - BT A A SR LA EE
GIME - ZERENATEMEIZEERT S
ST 1 A T E e

17. INVENTORIES 17. #8&
The Group
A% 4 JH]
2006 2005
ZERNE ZERE A
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#0 T ot
Raw materials JERL 3,175 2,325
Finished goods AL 5,600 4,016
8,775 6,341
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited

2 006 fF R F B B 2 R B R A 7



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 7% ¥ 5% B

For the year ended 30 June 2006 #Z T T AFAA=+RHILFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. JiE WUHR K S b JRE Wk
The Group
A 4R [
2006 2005
—RBAE SEBAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T T
Trade receivables JE iz AR K 4,120 2,077
Less: accumulated allowances o Bl (66) (190)
4,054 1,887
Other receivables At 8 i K 1,793 1,475
Total trade and other receivables JRE A B R S L At R K A R 5,847 3,362

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its

trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade

receivables at the balance sheet date prepared on the basis of

payment due date of sales invoice:

FEETFHHETHESGEF =+tHZFEE
oo RASH PR E R E BN R E 2
FEYEFH 2 A AR SR B 0 AT 0 T

The Group
A% 4 8]

2006 2005
ZRENG ZEE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Current B3 45 3k 2,495 1,111
1 to 3 months overdue w1 % 3ME H 1,108 555
More than 3 months 781 B 8 A 34 H 451 221
4,054 1,887

The fair value of the Group’s trade and other

June 2006 approximates the carrying amount.

receivables at 30

ANNUAL
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19. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 9. MEWLIBE & A E Z kI
The Group
A4
2006 2005
SRBAE BB AAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Loan account B IR IE 25 92
Trade account E o R IE 38 37
63 129
The loan account is unsecured, bears interest at 1% per annum AR T 7 SRR 4E S J 1 9 S JE i BEOR T
and is repayable on demand. The trade account is unsecured, 1,5@ > M g T T 1) 2 48 K A KR RS,
non-interest bearing and the Group allows an average credit ZF%[%]?}E?E]%WE%\%H%M/&:JZHZWT%E’E@
period of 45 days for sales made to the associate. The trade F45H o JR&H H Z H 5 IREIRE S A 7 A&
account at the balance sheet date are aged within the credit LHERTZEEHNA -
period granted by Group.
The fair value of the Group’s amount due from an associate at ATRENAFENH = H > A 5L OB
30 June 2006 approximates the carrying amount. 2 ) B O Y A ST 18 B AR T (B AR o
20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. SRAT AR M Bl &
Bank balances and cash comprises cash and short-term bank SRAT &5 B S Bl G 48 A B AR A\ R A
deposits held by the Group and the Company with an original B B < e U TR = 18T B LA A 2 G A SR
maturity of three months or less. The deposits carry fixed TTAE IR o A7 3K HE4.6% 1Y [ & A 515 A B
interest rate of 4.6%. The fair value of the Group’s and the A4 J Je AR 28 m]SRAT ‘.xnﬁ%ﬂg/\ngf{ﬁgﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
Company’s bank balances approximates the carrying amount. fEAHA o
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. FE A MR Ak B At M A K
Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of JRE ASF I A B HCAth JRE AF R 6 5 R AT B 5 R K
HK$1,440,000 (2005: HK$592,000). The following is an aged 1,440,000%: 70 (ZFF FL4F : 592,00047T) ©
analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date prepared on ﬁ/\\‘ GALF Ak R T R 5 2 B A AT B A 2 ik
the basis of payment due date of supplier’s invoice: HESHE 2 MEAT BR SR B 3 AT 40 -
The Group
A4
2006 2005
TEREBENE —EFEZAHAE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#t T T
Current IR ZER RN 643 396
1 to 3 months overdue A1 % 38 A 298 58
More than 3 months but less i 1 B A8 3 B
than 12 months overdue 7 1248 H LU 499 138
1,440 592
The fair value of the Group’s trade and other payables at 30 A ZEENAENA =T H A5 B AR
June 2006 approximates the carrying amount. T At ASE 31 2 1 {8 B RS TR (B AH %7 o
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
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22. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS

23.

24.

25.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B & 4 % Mt &

At

For the year ended 30 June 2006 #Z T T AFAA=+RHILFE

22. W AT A BB UK IR

The Group 7 4
The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are RGP A BN 2 IR~ R BRI S B 2 i SR T
repayable on demand. R -
The fair value of the Group’s amounts due to minority AZEENAENA=ZTH o A A D8
shareholders at 30 June 2006 approximates the carrying amount. I SRR I B 2 - {5 (R B R TR ELAH A o
AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES/  23. HEW (BEAT) BB 2 W]/ # F ik H
DIRECTORS
The Group and the Company A AR B AR T
The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are %G R 5 SEAEHT R B RE R BRI
repayable on demand. R -
The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s amounts due R EEANENH=1H > AEH AL
from (to) subsidiaries/directors at 30 June 2006 approximates JRE W (REAST) Bt Ja {/_\ HE R RIEN A EE
the carrying amount. BRI T {H AH 5 o
SHARE CAPITAL 24. JBA
Number of shares HK$’000
;&g gE| T T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 1 11 {EL0.0 19 7T 2 3 4 it
Authorised: e A
At 1 July 2004, 30 June 2005 and REEEMELH—H -
30 June 2006 CEERFEARAZTHK
ZEEZANERAA=TH 800,000,000 8,000
Issued and fully paid: BT R A
At 1 July 2004, 30 June 2005 and W ZFRNEELH —H
30 June 2006 “EREREAA=ZTHR
ZEERFEAA=ZTH 180,000,000 1,800
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 25. Jif Ji HE T 3k
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”) (1) F 8 BT S PR R S ) ([ st i el e R 38 )
The Pre-IPO Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution AN FERBER - EFEFNA+ —HE
passed on 12 April 2001 to recognise the contribution of i 2 — TH PR S BR AN 4B I T R RE S
executive directors and employees of the Company and H o FE DU AR o w) T HB JE S W 2 AT
its subsidiaries to the growth of the Group. The options = KR B B A 2 R Rt 2 B
granted under the scheme grant the right to the holder to T LA 2 o AREEFE SR TR A
subscribe for new ordinary shares of the Company at N HE R ] 42 4 B 5 7 0. 609k JT R I A%
HK$0.60 per ordinary share and the maximum number of O3 A 22 o T AR B R T 4%
shares in respect of which options might be granted under ZHEBREY Rz R EKRGBE S
the scheme was 14,400,000. The number of shares in 14,400,000/ ° o] % 7L ] A 4= 2 B %
respect of which options might be granted to any individual HE 2 T 47> 9 B AS 7T 8 443,600,000/ ©
was not permitted to exceed 3,600,000.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

25. [ B RESEE — 4

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”) (1) R BT B T ) (4R B0 B R w8 )
— continued —®
Options might be granted without any initial payment. Wi PR ME AE 37 AR S A5 AT AnT 40 25 3 JE 2 1
Options granted are exercisable to the extent of an TABIRTT TR o B R RETE A 2 IR 6y
aggregate total of 25%, 50%, 75% and 100% at anytime AR ZE AR BA 4R B AR - T 43 Al AE I N AR
after 6 months, 18 months, 30 months and 42 months, A+ M\ H > =8 H &+ = A
respectively, from the commencement of the trading of AR ZATA IR ] A B P AT 1 G S 4G
the shares of the Company on the GEM, and have a Wi B RE M BH 2 25% 0 50% 0 75% M
duration of 10 years from their respective vesting dates. 100% © &% % W IR et 25 A w472 B
) i S RS g
Upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM on BA N ROG®R —FEE—FTHNHTE
8 May 2001 no further options could be granted by the A SE MR b A% - AR R 4R IR AT R R RE S
Company under the Pre-IPO Scheme. The rights of the H > AN F AR AT A W RRE T AE
holders of the share options granted prior thereto are not M DL AT AR IR IR RE 2 e A NPT = A 2 1
affected and such options granted continue to remain valid 2% AN B 2 B G 2 s AREE R ARG
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the S5 B 2 T RRE A AT3 2R A 2800 TT T LA
scheme. 17 fd o
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s NREFEARE T HAFE R _FEN
share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme during the years SENH =1 H R AF BE R AR 45 3 I I A%
ended 30 June 2005 and 2006: REGT B A A &) 2 W I RE 2 52 B 1
Lapsed Lapsed
Exercise price Balance at during Balance at during Balance at
Date of grant per share 1 July 2004 the year 30 June 2005 the year 30 June 2006
(51 e = JuE BERRTAE Y 2 JAYC
i I tH—H REERE  AAZTH  REERT AAZTH
it B TR WM KRB WA ZIERME KRR 2R
HK$ (note) (note)
T (Hf7E) (Hf7E)
Directors of the Company
. /NEIPA
Dr. Chan Chok Ki 12 April 2001 0.60 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
BRAE 2L £ < S
mA+=H
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 12 April 2001 0.60 1,440,000 - 1,440,000 - 1,440,000
G REE
WA+=H
Mr. Ho Ka Ho 12 April 2001 0.60 1,364,000 - 1,364,000 - 1,364,000
IFT Sitia —EEF
MAt+=H
4,604,000 - 4,604,000 - 4,604,000
Employees of the Group 12 April 2001 0.60 6,272,000 (2,360,000) 3,912,000 (1,856,000) 2,056,000
AEMER < S
mA+=H
10,876,000 (2,360,000) 8,516,000 (1,856,000) 6,660,000
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Limited
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25. JiE B RESEE — 4

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(i)

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”)

— continued

No options had been exercised since the date of grant. At
30 June 2006, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme
represents 3.7% (2005: 4.7%) of the shares of the Company
in issue at that date.

Note: These options lapsed upon the resignation of the grantees.
Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the
“2003 Option Scheme™)

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 October 2003, the
2003 Option Scheme was adopted to recognise and
motivate the contribution of the employees and to provide
incentives and help the Company in retaining its existing
employees and recruiting additional employees for a term
of ten years. The board of directors of the Company may
at its discretion grant options to any employees, including
executive and non-executive directors, advisers,
consultants, agents, contractors, customers and suppliers
of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Option may be granted at a consideration of HK$1 and
should be accepted within 5 business days from the date
of grant. The option granted is exercisable upon acceptance
of and payment of consideration by the grantee and have

a duration of 10 years from their respective vesting dates.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted cannot exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company on 28 October 2003. No
option shall be granted to a grantee if the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted under the 2003 Option Scheme
in any twelve months period up to and including the date
of grant to such grantee would exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being in issue.

(1)

ANNUAL
200 6 fF

4 L T D ARt [ B i S B A -t )
—

I #2 Sl A 1 % RE A AT A o R
CERENFSNH = H > RIS B i
JREHE &1 ) 2 ) 2 W JREHE 2 T 9y S A R
HEIAR AR EITRM3.7% (ZFEF R
A1 47%) o

Pt A W R A AR 4 N BEAE AR 2

i =g O R e VIR 7 S Pl ) d
REGE ] ([ =22 =4 I pe w2 1)
MR —FLF=4F+H _+/\H@EH
RERE > AR AR BT = F MR
FEE o DURRE R M M B (R B A A R
HE R - AN EBA R B AT
JB - i DA B 45 B A AT o DA R B AT
BTHEZEIMER - KRR EE AT
15 10 AF: o] A B 452 £ J S A (0 438 A 4 )
ZHITEFERFEATES  ER - M
]~ AREL -~ RMERE - BE R RER) D
o W AS 2% R By o S A T DA 1 s
JUAR o M ZE A B R R A
S H N HEA o AE RN AN B SAT I
BE B ARABT IS - S A vl 7 DAAT 0 >
AR B A A BB B EH 10
4 o

4T WA 2 = Iy B H > A5
WMANFNR - FE=ZHF+THA FAHZ
EBEAT A 2 10% o A 75 AE Al + = H
] B AR R T ORI H
(E455% H) 1k B 84T B AR E =%
T AR R B AR B TR 2
U PR A (5 IR I T 3R AT 2 B BRI
R AS 2 B E R CERAT AR 2 1% o BIAR
O T AN 45 I AR RE o
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(i)

Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the

“2003 Option Scheme”) — continued

The subscription price shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Daily Quotation Sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the Daily
Quotation Sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a
share. Without prejudice to the generality of the above,
the board of directors of the Company may grant options
in respect of which the subscription price is fixed at

different price.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options under the 2003 Option Scheme during the
years ended 30 June 2005 and 2006:

25. [ B RESEE — 4

(i)

RoBBEZATH T \H R Z 8K
%%Jriﬂ (F‘??jﬁﬁﬂﬁ@fﬁ%h —

Ao AT IR NS = 2 ey
¢“7&%ﬂ&ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬂ %H)E
B H R AR 2 i il 5 GDA R A
e BB B2 H AT 108 22 5 HOi 4
18 3% 2 o 2 o o s B G ik 4 T
B« EARE L —BmEFEAT - A
2N ) HE G AP ) DUAS [ R AR 1 S R
8 < s BB

TREHERE LR EEANE
AAZF B IR AL TR E
A I P T 5 e 2 A e

1
Balance at Granted Lapsed Balance at Lapsed Balance at
Exercise price 1 July during during 30 June during 30 June
Date of grant per share 2004 the year the year 2005 the year 2006
Bl RERENE REZFLE RERERE
TR e —~A-H RERN REER  ARZETH REER  AH=ETH
b il WRZHEE ROCBRE KNZBRE WRIBRE KAZMRE WHIERE
HKS (note) (note)
i i) (i
Director of the Company
KAFIZESH
Dr. Chan Chok Ki 4 August 2004 0.145 - 900,000 - 900,000 - 900,000
BRAE 2 1 “EREMAENANH
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 4 August 2004 0.145 - 720,000 - 720,000 - 720,000
B+ “EREMAENANH
Mr. Ho Ka Ho 4 August 2004 0.145 - 680,000 - 680,000 - 680,000
(IPE 33 “EREMAENANH
- 2,300,000 - 2,300,000 - 2,300,000
Employees of the Group 4 August 2004 0.145 - 1,080,000 (380,000) 700,000 (320,000) 380,000
A5 1R B “EENEAANH
- 3,380,000 (380,000) 3,000,000 (320,000) 2,680,000

No options had been exercised since the date of grant.
The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before 4 August 2004 (date of grant of the above options)
was HK$0.145. At 30 June 2006, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted under the 2003
Option Scheme represents 1.5% (2005: 1.7%) of the shares

of the Company in issue at that date.

Note: These options lapsed upon the resignation of the grantees.
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
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RESERVES 26. fif i
(Deficit)
Share Retained
premium profits Total
(e 4
JBe A3 ik AT 4 B i 7 Ak
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T oT T T T
THE COMPANY ZIV\:,I
At 1 July 2004 B EFEFEEELH—H 21,605 949 22,554
Profit for the year A A B Vi | - 12 12
At 30 June 2005 AZEERFENH=TH 21,605 961 22,566
Loss for the year A4 JE i 1R - (2,373) (2,373)
At 30 June 2006 W ZEERENFESNH=ZTH 21,605 (1,412) 20,193
DEFERRED TAXATION . S A
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) THBIEAREE MREEE > R EE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior R GE B IE A AT CE ) KA RE S
years:
Accelerated  Capitalised
tax development Tax
depreciation costs losses Total
Ei s
B RARE AR T 75 Jies 1 A
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T 7T T T T T T 7T
THE GROUP A SR
At 1 July 2004 W EEPNAELH—H 71 353 (424) =
(Credit) charge to income statement g GEA) kR (12) (62) 74 =
At 30 June 2005 and 1 July 2005 MEERRLAEANA=Z1H K
—“EERFEELA—H 59 291 (350) -
(Credit) charge to income statement g R GEA) Bk (49) (11) 60 =
At 30 June 2006 WZEENEANA=ZTH 10 280 (290) =
At 30 June 2006, the Group has unused tax losses of A ZEFENENH = H > A E AL A
HK$8,888,000 (2005: HK$9,746,000) available for offset against K B R 2k WE R 2 M oK B O BB ks 1R &
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in 8 888 ,000% 7T (=& X T4 : 9,746,000
respect of HK$1,658,000 (2005: HK$1,997,000) of such losses. o 7S £E [ 5 yfﬂg‘iféfﬁﬁﬁ )2 R GE B TE A
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the ?2%1,658,000{%7D ZEEHAE 11,997,000
remaining unused tax losses of HK$7,230,000 (2005: #EIT) o HR R BETE R AR AR A - Wl 4 it B
HK$7,749,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit T Z R B B E G H7,230,0008 0T (—F
streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of FHAE : 7,749,000%E 7T) i 57 7 1 4 Bl TH B
HK$643,000 (2005: HK$405,000) that will expire in 2010 EE o léﬁﬂiﬁﬁa i TE i 15 b 2 i 1H643,000%5 7T
through 2011. The remaining tax losses may be carried forward (ZFZFAE : 405,000% 70) A% B —F —F4F
indefinitely. B —AEFH o B ZBUIH G H AT T
R 30 4655 7 & et o
ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued

At 30 June 2006, the Group has other deductible temporary
differences of HK$99,000 (2005: HK$101,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

27.

BB IE — 4

R EENENA=ZSTH o A2 HAthw]
198 IRF 22 A8 45 99,0005 J0 (AL ¢
101,000%5 76) © FH /A T8 B 3% 4 1 SR B % A1 af
FAAE K 8 0T B A 2 ] ik BT R 25 A o kiR
40 7t T 11 Y T IR 2 AE ME R AR AE B E B E o

28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 28. B {4 At #
The subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in a defined A s 2 B N ) 2 BEAR 8% 0 M B e
contribution retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) registered ) 46 ] 5 9 o AR AL SOR AR T 3] (T A 4 w1
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The #1) o vE AR A EH W 2 B AR A ] O E Ay
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the BIEA o A7 RO Y — 44 M 52 A5 T N L
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Ao MR IR B R 2 HUE o R T R H
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its & B & 3 L H A E 2 tt%ﬁ%ilﬂﬁ# ®
employees are each required to make contributions to the A 58 A 4 A TS AN 4R R JH S R B R AR
scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of JAHERR o AR @ImTﬂ%ﬁf?ﬂ@ﬁﬂi%%{ffﬁ
the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the bR 2 R Wik o
required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions payable in
future years.
The employees of the subsidiary in the People’s Republic of A S E R EE N RIEFNE] (T ) Z A
China (the “PRC”) are members of a state-managed retirement G =W &8t VE O VA =
benefit scheme operated by the PRC government. The subsidiary 5% wt ) H A B O RS o BB A W ZH i B H
is required to contribute 8% of the basic salary of its employees 1@ B AR 37 48 2 8% ] AR IR g A1 wt # 4F i it
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only AR o i SR AR AR AE R T A 4R B R ZE AR thdE
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit FE LK o
is to make the specified contribution.
In addition to the participation in the above retirement benefit B 2 B gl 3R R AR A RS SN > 2 il iR S B B
schemes, the subsidiary in the United Kingdom and the TN 3 2 o e D 2 R 4 (B % G o 3 R
subsidiary in Singapore are required to contribute, respectively, Z A > iR LR A LA bl T AR B K
to National Insurance Contributions and Central Provident # T B B % §l M National Insurance
Fund Scheme for certain of its employees in the United Kingdom Contributions & Central Provident Fund Scheme
and Singapore based on applicable rates in accordance with the e -
relevant government regulations.
The total cost charged to income statement of HK$601,000 TE U 7 2 A F1 BR 2 A A 601,00085 7T (&
(2005: HK$584,000) represents contributions payable to these FIAE - 584,000% 70) £ A< 4 [ 50 A< & =51
schemes by the Group in respect of current accounting period. ] 1) 1 &5 st o) AR o 2 R Ko
29. OPERATING LEASES 29. AL A K PE
The Group
AL
2006 2005
CERFANE ZELTHAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T# T T T
Minimum lease payments made under A AR AF B AR 5 R 8 AL 40
operating leases in respect of premises BB A A 2
during the year fc I FH % A1 4 1,157 1,141
ANNUAL REPORT
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29. OPERATING LEASES - continued
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of premises which fall due as follows:

29. KM A ZPE — ]

JRAEH AR A B W 26 2 A E] R AE
B TH A T ZETE R AR SO A 2 B (R AR 9 FH 8 2 7K
W N EH B

The Group
P 9

2006 2005

TREN BT R

HK$°000 HK$’000

T T T

Within one year — 4N 895 881
In the second to fifth year inclusive B R ol T

(5 & i A7 B 45 1 1) 269 1,119

1,164 2,000

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average
of three years and rentals are fixed for an average of three
years.

The Company has no significant lease commitments at the
balance sheet date.

JREAST 2 68 R A0 FH B 4 AS 4R F /5 T N W) 3
St Z A o AR R =4 o T E
BT =R E K o

A% 4 A 5 B S 40 T A AL 40 R B o

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. AL 5
The Group
Z< 4 JE

2006 2005

RN ZEERAF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T

Sales to an associate ] Jgh % N H) 6 267 391
Interest income from loan to an associate KE%HTEESARRZ

B e A 4 4

Delivery expense charged to an associate Te e 5 2 ) s T i) 7 o 2 16 22
Service fee to City University of Hong Kong EESRGSI AN AR PN

(“City University”) A IR A 21 27

CityU Enterprises Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of City
University, holds a 30% interest in Etin City Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

84 Etin City Limited (A8 7] 2 FE R R 2
—) 309 4 < WK A 3 BR 4 R Ay IOk 2 4
gy AN

FEAT BN B Rl A
o S Ho At 32 A B B A AR TR 2 4
o

The Group
A4

2006 2005
SEENE CEERA
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# o0 T
Short-term benefits et 11 A A 4,643 4,419
Post-employment benefits e Hik 1% A A 72 71
4,715 4,490

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

ANNUAL
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RESULTS ES
Year ended 30 June
WEAH=Z1THILE)E
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
“ER M ZETEF ZRRPE —RTRAE REBANE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T# T T# T T#TT T#T

Revenue EEE 17,005 26,447 30,458 27,492 37,356
Loss before tax o Al A1 e 45 (5,064) (1,272) (911) (3,500) (209)
Income tax credit (charge) T A5 B S (32 ) 589 (30) 21 — -
Loss for the year A AF E Jigs 15 (4,475) (1,302) (890) (3,500) (209)
Attributable to: 1O NN o Y [

Equity holders of the Company A2\ Al #E 2 £f i A (4,399) (1,209) (946) (3,284) (273)
Minority interests D B TRORE 45 (76) (93) 56 (216) 64
(4,475) (1,302) (890) (3,500) (209)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES % E KA AE

At 30 June
WAHA=+H

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

SEToE SEESE SERNNE BREE RBAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Tiow  Tww  TWE W T

Total assets MG E 37,509 35,210 35,693 33,291 34,118
Total liabilities M B (3,841) (3,204) (3,902) (4,248) (5,334)
33,668 32,006 31,791 29,043 28,784

Equity attributable to equity 7282 &l #E 4 £F A A
holders of the Company JRE A R 2 33,734 32,173 31,878 29,339 29,032
Minority interests D B PR 2 (66) (167) (87) (296) (248)
33,668 32,006 31,791 29,043 28,784

ANNUAL REPORT TeleEye Holdings Limited
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